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PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LTD. 

Departmental Accounts Examination - 2024 (2"d Session) 

~ Cat~gory- AE(E) -- (Paper-I) 

works Accounts 

Roll No-
I 
\ 

I 
Time Allowed : 3 Hours 

Note All Questions are compulsory 

Max Marks : 100 

I 

Q.Y . d w rks regulation-1997? 

1.f.1 

a) Comment upon forfeiture of security deposit un er O k lO) 
(Mar s: 

(gJ ~ aqJHl-lo- 19 9 7 -e 3fcB rPf?>3t ocn-f r.!B3 cRl?> ·3 ~ ora ? 

b) Comme-nt upon Prequalification Criteria under PSTCL Purchase regulation -

2017. 
(Marks: 5) 

l?fJ PSTCL l:@R' fcxlwf-2017 -e ))fl:TT7) tft-o!~1Hlf~~l-li'i ,::Mtjt®fil o@? 

c) Write brief note on "Dismantlement Register"7 

c: ) "~ afr1Rcd" ~~?le~ 

(Marks: 5) 

Q.2 a) In case of real urgency, a work can be commenced in the absence of 

sanctioned estimate, who is competent to decide the urgency? (Marks: 10) 

y.2 {g) fqFf ~ Rfi:f3t M:r, ~ ~ eT ~ M:f ~ °B2 cTT3"" rfT ~ "V, l'}{3 TT:R e'" 

Q.3 

1.p 

~ fuB ctr m@1:f c) ? 

b) Sr Xen Mohali has issued U cheque for Rs 74000 for IUT Bill of Rs 85000 raised 

by Sr Xen TLSC Patiala. Comment. (Marks:5) 
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c) What are the condi tions in which revised estimate is to be prepared? (Marks:5) 

a) Authority competent to accept tender for a work, approved for re -invitation of 

tender as less than three tenders received only? Comment 

£1 ) frn, ~ ~ m ~~are Ff()~~ err m }f3' ~~ore~ & 3 
- -

utc m lf1-B ere Ff()? ®-r8 a@ 

b) A supplier failed to supply the material within st ipulated delivery period. What 

action can be taken in such case 7 

~ no fi!q ~ f?saq,a3 f.;1Ml~al ~ e ~ m-l'a@t ~ ~ c@?l M, ~ 
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c) Generally suppliers are required to submit earnest money in case o f open and 

limited tenders. What are !he exception 7 
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Q4 
lf.4 

chart of accounts:
a) Indicate the Account Heads~P~ -e'it:-
~)tl'1oc ~ ~ e ~ 

1. 46.986 
2. 76.302 
3. 44.320 
4. 74.311 
5. 78.542 

(Marks: 5) 

If S then f h r asset7 ye ' b) Can depreciation on an asset become the cost o anot e (Marks: 5) 
how? 

Q 

l?f) cit tcm RLBt ·1 U/'c' tcm c1o RtBt a oitH3' ~ ~ ~ ? rl cJT, ~ ~ 7 

. • d oncerned officer c) A power transformer damaged in the warranty peno , c 
communicated to the supplier to repair it as per terms of contract but the 
supplier doesn't responds even after the passage of 34 days despite s.e~eral 
reminders. What action is requ ired to be taken by the different officers/off1c1als? 

E) ~ mf &7> funm eT c d iR6: 1dHo ~d11:T ~ @Tr)f, RB1B ~rQc:< 1a1 ?) ~ 
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~~~cit o( 'd~ 1el ~ ~ Ri" -V? (Marks:10) 
OS a) Define BRS in context of PSTCL? When it is pre pared in PSTCL's offices? What 

are its objectives. 

lf.5 t?') PSTCL ~ 'Rto3' mJ BRS ~ ~rd3'rl-i3 ~? fi!cJ PSTCL e ~ AA, of-e' f:rrwo ofBr 
rRT V? TE"Re ~cit®' 

(Marks:10) 

b) What is Adva nce cash Account? By whom and wh ·t . · en 1 1s prepared ? 

l?f) ~~tjST citci? fem~ ))13 ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ? 

(Marks:10) 
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PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION t:ORPORATION LIMITED 

DEPARTMENTAL ACCOUNTS EXAMINATION-2024 (2nd SESSION) 

CATEGORY: AE(E). MODEL SOLUTION PAPER-I (WORKS ACCOUNTS) 

Q. l(a): Comment upon forfeiture of security deposit under Works regulation-1997? 

Sol l(a}: In the event of default on the part of Contractor in the faithful execution, the 

security deposit shall be forfeited by an order of the Contracting Agency under 

intimation to other SEs. CEs and Secretary Board. In the case of field Sr. XENs, an order of 

forfeiture of Security deposit shall be issued by them provided they are Contracting 

Agency, under intimation to their SEs, who in turn shall circulate the same to other SEs. 

CEs and Secretary Board. The forfeiture of security deposit shall be without prejudice to 

any other rights arising or accruing to the Board under relevant provision of the contract 

like penalty/damages for delay in delivery or risk execution of work including suspension 

of business dealings with Board for a specific period. 

Q.l(b): Comment upon Prequalification Criteria under PSTCL Purchase regulation-

2017? 

Sol": As per regulation of 17 of Purchase Regulation, Prequalification, wherever 

incorporated in a tender, shall be based entirely upon the capability and resources of 

prospective bidders to perform the particular contract satisfactorily. The PQC for various 

items already approved shall continue, till not amended. The PQC if needs to be 

amended or added fresh for new items, shall be framed as per the CVC guidelines and 

approved by Director/Technical, Director/F&C and Director/Admin. 

Q.l(c): Write brief note on "Dismantlement Register"? 

Sol": The form CE-43 Register of Dismantlement has been designed as and when 

the material is dismantled from a work, an inventory of all the materials 

dismantled, whether in serviceable or unserviceable conditions should be 

prepared and entered in the same in the Register of Dismantlement. The entries in 

this register are made article wise by entering name of article, present value, 

Quantity, unit, d~reciated value and how the same has been disposed is also 

recorded. The SDO should verify the inventory and in token record his initial. It is a 

good tool to have a control over the material dismantled from the works and 

watch its disposal. 



Q.2 (a): In case of real urgency, a work can be commenced in the absence of 
sanctioned estimate, who is competent to decide the urgency? 
Soln: The Chief Engineer or the Superintending Engineer whosoever is competent 

to sanction the estimate for the work proposed to be taken in hand anticipation of 

a sanctioned estimate or provision of funds is the authority to decide as to 

whether the urgency of any case warrants the commencement of work. No work 

whatsoever should be commenced in the absence of a sanctioned estimate, 

without the previous approval in writing of Chief Engineer/Superintending 

Engineer, which will be accorded only in cases of real urgency. Even if such an 

approval has been accorded, the expenditure incurred is in no way regularized, 

unti l an estimate is sanctioned by competent authority. The Divisional officer 

concerned should, therefore, take immediate steps to have estimate (fi nal or 

tentative) sanctioned for such works. In the case of estimates sanctioned by the 

Divisional officer, advice should be submitted to the CE and CAO, through the 

Superintending Engineer of the particulars of sanctioned estimates 

Q.2(b): Sr Xen Mohali has issued U cheque for Rs 74000 for IUT Bill of Rs 85000 

raised by Sr Xen TLSC Patiala. Comment. 

Sain: Action of Sr Xen Mohali is not in order. The IUT Bill is to be ve rified 

/accepted for full amount and not in part. IUT Bill should have been returned to Sr. 

Xen/TLSC Patiala for withdrawal and ra ising a fresh IUT Bill for Rs. 74,000/- . 

Q.2 (c): What are the conditions in which revised estimate is to be prepared? 

Sain: Revised Estimate: When the sanctioned estimate is likely to be executed by 

more than 5% due to increase the rates or any other cause except when 
supplementary estimate is required, the revised estimate shall be prepared. A 
revised estimate may be prepared only when a supplementary estimate is not 
required. A revised estimate shall also be necessary when either before 
commencement of work or during it is found that the original estimate is excessive 
(except in cases of abandonment of a section of sanctioned project or change of 
design from the original proposal). 

I 
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Q.3(a): Authority competent to accept tender for a work, approved for re

invitation of tender as less than three tenders received only? Comment 

Sain: As per regu lation-18 of works regulations, tender may be re-invited after 

appro\lal of next higher authority to the authority competent to accept tenders in 

e\ent of inadequacy of number of tenders i.e. less than three . So, authority 

competent to accept tender cannot approve for re-invitation of tender. Approval 

of ne'<t higher authority is required in such case . 

Q.3(b): A supplier failed to supply the material within stipulated delivery period. 
What action can be taken in such case? 
Soln: As per General Terms & Conditions no. 9 of Purchase Regu lations, if the 

supplier fa ils to deliver the material within the stipu lated delivery period of 

purchase order/contract, the same is liable to be rejected and if accepted, the 

supplier is liable to pay penalty @1/2%(Half of one percent) of the cost of 

undelivered supply/ incomplete equipment per week of delay or part thereof not 

exceeding maximum limit of 10% of the cost of complete unit of undelivered 

equipn,ent/material so delayed. 

Q3(c) : Generally suppliers are required to submit earnest money in case of open 

and limited tenders. What are the exception? 

Sol": As per Regulat ion 18 of Pu rchase Regu lations: 

EARN EST MONEY DEPOSIT (EMO) FOR TENDERS 

In case of open and limited Tenders, the Tenderers shall be required to submit 

Earnest Money (EMO) at the ra tes prescribed by PSTCL in form of PSTCL Cash 

Receipt/ Bank Draft/ e-payment along with the Tenders. 

However, the following shall be exempted from deposit ing the Earnest Money: -

(a) Public Sector undertakings owned by Punjab Govt./Central Govt./other State 
Govt. supplying material directly through units owned by them subject to 

submission of documentary evidence of Government ownership. Exemption shall 
not be applicable if the Tender is submitted for supply of material through 
private unit/manufacturer. 



{b) Suppliers having permanent earnest money deposit of Rs. 10 lacs with the 
Corporation provided that a certificate to this effect issued by the Accounts 
Otticer/CPC, during three months immediately preceding the due date for tender 
opening and showing the Serial No./Account No. allotted in the Permanent 
Earnest Money Deposit Register shall be submitted online. Accounts of Permanent 
Earnest Money deposit shall be maintained by AO/CPC. 

{c) Suppliers covered under MSMED Act, 2006. 



Q.4la): Indicate the Account Heads as per chart of accounts:

Sol 1. 46.986 - GST deducted at source (TDS) - SGST 

1. 76.302 - Expenditure incurred for CSR activities 
2. 44.320 - Bonus payable 

3. 74.311 - Expenditure on Horticulture 
4. 78.542 - Interest on Loans from IREDA 

Q.4lb Can depreciation on an asset become the cost of another asset? If yes, then 
how? 

Soln: Depreciation on construction facilities (earth-movers, cement mixers etc.) 

shall be capitalized. Similarly, depreciation on fixed assets used for construction 

of other assets (e.g. depreciation on vehicles transferred to a project, 
depreciation on building, furniture & fixtures, vehicles and office equipment (s) at 

construction sites are charged to capital works, and thus becomes the cost 
of another asset. 

Q.4(c) A power transformer damaged in the warranty period, concerned officer 
communicated to the supplier to repair it as per terms of contract but the supplier 
doesn't responds even after the passage of 34 days despite several reminders. 
What action is required to be taken by the different officers/officials? 

Sol": As the supplier has not responded even after the passage of 34 days despite 
several reminders the transformer wil l be sent to the Grid Division for repair. The 
Grid division on receipt of the communication and the transformer for repa ir enter 
into Transformer for Repair Register (TRR) and value the cost of repair including 
the price of material used a per job card at the latest issue rate available from 
stores, Labour time consumed and va lued at the prevailing labour rate, 
administrative over heads at the rate fixed by the competent authority. The 
supervision charges and departmental charges shall also be levied on material 
used and labour charges respectively. On receipt of the cost summary, the Grid 
division will enter in the TRR and warranty cost recovery control register and 
intimate the cost of repair to AO/CPC in order to recover the same from suppl ier. 
AO/CPC will recover the cost of repair from the supplier in terms of agreement and 
on recovering the cost U-cheque will be set Grid division. The entry will be made in 
the Warranty period cost recovery register which shall be scrutinized 
and verified by Xen. 



Q.S: a) Define BRS in context of PSTCL? When it is prepared in PSTCL's offi ces? 
What are its objectives. 

Sain: As it is normal that PSTCL's accounting units bank balance as per accounting 
records differ from the balance as per bank statement due to timing differences. 
Certain transactions are recorded by the entitles that are updated in the bank's 
system after a cert ain time lag. Likewise, some transactions are accounted for in 
the bank's financial system before the company incorporates them into its own 
accounting system. Such timing differences appear as reconciling items in the Bank 
Reconciliation Statement. As such, a Bank Reconciliat ion Statement can be defined 
as a report which compares the bank balance as per company's accounting records 
with the balance stated in the bank statement OR we can say that Bank 
Reconciliation Statement is an important technique by which the accuracy of the 
bank balance shown by the pass book and cash book is ensured. The purpose of 
preparing a Bank Reconciliation Statement is to detect any discrepancies between 
the accounting records of the entity and the bank besides those due to normal 
t iming differences. Such discrepancies might exist due to an error on the part of 
the company or the bank. 

In PSTCL Bank Reconciliation Statement is of 2 types and these are prepared at 
month end:-

a) Collection account Bank Reconciliation Statement: At the month end collect 
bank statement/get the pass book completed from the concerned bank branch 
and match the credits/debits with reference to remittance into bank (RIB) 
Statement for the current month. The unlinked items to be identified and 
classified under the following headings:-
i) Transfers effected by the bank during the month. 
ii) Amount/Cheques deposited but not credited by the bank. 
iii) Cheques dishonoured by bank but not accounted for by the depositing office . 
iv) Wrong debits or under-casting by the bank. 
v) Unlinked credits given by the bank. 
vi) Unlinked minus items of RIB. 
vii) Wrong credits or over-casting by bank. 
b) Disbursement account Bank Reconciliation Statement:- Refer to Bank 
Statements/Pass book for the current month and on the basis references available 
from the Register of Cheques Drawn and encashes (RCDE) & match all debits 
indicated by bank during the month as follows:-



i) Debits relating to cheques drawn in previous months but encashed in current 
month with the previous month's Disbursement account Bank Reconcil iation 
Statement. 

ii) Cheques drawn and encashed during the month with corresponding entry 

in bank payment column of Cash Book using references given in RCDE. 
iii)Debits for reversal of unexplained credits if any of previous and current month's 

DBRS and/or bank advices. 

Match all credits indicated in the disbursement bank statements/pass book for 
the reversal of unexplained debits of previous and current month with the 
previous month's DBRS and/or bank advice. Review previous month 's DBRS, 
bank statement/pass book for the current month and bank payment column of 
Cash Book for current month and record all unmatched items in the DBRS of 
previous month on last page of RCDE for the month indicate reversal in case of 
correction by bank during the month. Also incorporate details of additional 
unexplained debits and credits during the month, if any. Check that all 
unmatched items have been recorded in the DBRS. 

Objectives of Bank Reconciliation Statement:-

1. Helps in the identification of errors in the accounting records of the company or 
the bank. 

2. Provide the necessary control mechanism to help protect the valuable resource 
through uncovering irregularities such as unauthorized bank withdrawals. 

3. Assist in the regular monitoring of cash flows of a business. 
4. Ensures the accuracy of the balances shown by the pass book and cash book. 
5. Provides a check on the accuracy of entries made in both the books. 
6. Helps to update the cash book by discovering some entries not yet recorded. 
7. Indicates any undue delay in the collection and clearance of some cheques. 



.5: b) What is Advance cash Account? By whom and when it is prepared? 

01°: Permanent Imprest Holder must prepare the Advance Cash Account/Imprest 

Account in duplicate on the prescribed format as and when expenditure is 

incurred. As and when reimbursement is required enter the Total payments made 

in the Advance cash Account, sign it and attach the relevant vouchers. Indicate 

the numbers of documents attached to the Advance Cash Account. Indicate name 

of work, work order number and total amount to be debited to such work in the 

remarks column of the imprest/Advance Cash Account. On the same day, put up 

Advance Cash Account with supporting vouchers to the competent authority for 

approval of vouchers. 
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PUNJAB STATE TRANSMISSION CORPORATION LIMITED 
DEPARTMENTAL ACCOUNTS EXAMINATION-2024 (2nd SESSION) 

CATEGORY: AE(E). MODEL SOLUTION PAPER-I (WORKS ACCOUNTS) 
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